
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 28, 2025 – 9:00 AM 

The regular meeting of the Cambria Community Healthcare District will be held at 
Old Cambria Grammar School, 1350 Main Street Cambria, California. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86892181147?pwd=9jPVH3UZqgCcUBMcepCnzYzmCQmww7.1 

Meeting ID: 868 9218 1147 Passcode: 584747 
+1 669 444 9171 US

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

AGENDA 

A. OPENING
1. Call to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Establishment of a quorum

B. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
1. Public members wishing to address the Board on matters other than scheduled items

may do so when recognized by the President of the Board of Directors, Cecilia Montalvo.
Presentations are limited to a maximum of three minutes per person.

C. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approve Minutes from December 17, 2024, Regular Board Meeting.

D. REPORTS
1. Operations Report:  Operations Manager Tim Nurge, Supervisors Paul Hoover and

Michael Bryant 
2. Administrative/Financial Review:  Administrator Linda Hendy
3. Committee Reports:  December 2024

a. President’s Report:  Cecilia Montalvo
b. Property & Facilities:  Laurie Mileur
c. Healthcare Advocacy & Outreach:  Dawn Kulesa
d. Finance:  Iggy Fedoroff
e. Development:  Laurie Mileur

E. REGULAR BUSINESS
1. Actions Related to the Sale of General Obligation Bonds – Resolutions 53-25 and 51-25
2. Fiscal Year Audit 2023-2024 – Presentation
3. Ambulance Unit-23 Loan Agreement - Resolution 52-25

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86892181147?pwd=9jPVH3UZqgCcUBMcepCnzYzmCQmww7.1


4. Establish Independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee for Measure C-24 – Resolution
50-25

5. Key Performance Indicators (KPI) Biannual Report
6. Renewal of California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Membership
7. Establish a Debt Management Policy

F. DECLARATION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

G. ADJOURNMENT
The next regular meeting of the Cambria Community Healthcare District Board of Directors
will be held on February 25, 2025, at 9:00 A.M. at the Old Cambria Grammar School, 1350
Main Street Cambria, California.

Copies of the monthly agenda, staff reports, and written materials provided to the Board of Directors for 
Open Session agenda items may be obtained online at www.cambria-healthcare.org and at the District 
office located at 2511 Main Street, Cambria, during regular business hours. Closed-session items are not 
available for public review. Any changes or additions to the agenda will be posted at the District office and 
on the District website. 

Note: While board members may not engage in dialog with the public during the board meeting, individual 
members may choose to incorporate an answer to a question posed by the public during their discussion 
of an agenda item. 



December 17, 2024, Meeting Minutes 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
December 17, 2024  

 
 

A. OPENING 

1. The meeting was called to order at 9:02 am. 

2. President Montalvo led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Board of Directors members Cecilia Montalvo, Iggy Fedoroff, Laurie Mileur, and Bruce 
Mumper were present. Dawn Kulesa was present via Zoom.  

Administrator Linda Hendy, Supervisor Paul Hoover, and Office Manager Jennifer Harley were 
also present. Operations Manager Tim Nurge was present via Zoom. 

B. OATH OF OFFICE 

1. Oath of Office: Secretary Fedoroff swore in President Montalvo and Director Mumper. 
President Montalvo swore in Director Fedoroff. 

C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Director Mileur motioned to approve the following 2025 Officer nominations, Director Fedoroff 
seconded the motion, and the Board approved the motion by roll call, 5/0. 

• President – Cecilia Montalvo 
• Vice President – Bruce Mumper 
• Secretary – Iggy Fedoroff 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

1. No members of the public provided comment. 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. The Minutes from the November 19, 2024, Regular Board meeting were presented for review 
and approval. Director Fedoroff motioned to approve, Director Mumper seconded, and the 
Board approved 5/0. 

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

G.  REGULAR BUSINESS 

1. Isom Advisors, Bond Measure C-24 Presentation – A proposed change to the order of Agenda 
items was approved, allowing Jon Isom to present before Agenda item F. Reports. 

Jon Isom, Isom Advisors, provided a bond issuance overview, including the definition of 
general obligations bonds and how they work, the key steps in setting up, preparing, and 
selling the bonds, best practices for the Citizens Bond Oversight Committee, and the bond 
timeline. 

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

 

Page 3 of 261



December 17, 2024, Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

F. REPORTS 

1. Operations Report: Operations Manager Tim Nurge and Supervisor Paul Hoover presented 
the monthly report for November 2024. Transport activities, response times, and a CalTrans 
update on Highway 1 were discussed. 

2. Administrative/Financial Review: The November 2024 financial reports were presented by 
Administrator Linda Hendy.  

3. Committee Reports: 
a. President’s Report: In light of recent school shootings, President Montalvo inquired about 

our community's preparedness to respond to active shooter incidents.  

b. Property & Facilities / Facility Project Ad-Hoc: Director Mileur announced that an ad-hoc 
meeting was held on December 3, 2024, along with staff meetings to discuss the 
functional needs of the new ambulance station. Director Mileur thanked Operations 
Manager Nurge and Supervisor Hoover for their valuable feedback. The next Property & 
Facilities Committee meeting will be held on December 18, 2024. 

c. Healthcare Advocacy & Outreach: Director Kulesa announced that two articles will be 
published in December. The first article, "Beating Holiday Blues," written by Operations 
Manager Nurge, was released on December 5, 2024. It offers tips for coping with 
depression and stress during the holiday season. The second article, which will focus on 
finding mental health support and include resources, is scheduled for publication on 
December 19, 2024. 

d. Finance: Director Fedoroff stated that he and Administrator Hendy are reviewing 
potential overpayment issues with current retiree health premiums. A future closed 
session may be scheduled to address a course of action.  

e. Development Committee: Director Mileur praised President Montalvo’s annual trust 
letter sent to the community. 

G. REGULAR BUSINESS 
1. Isom Advisors, Bond Measure C-24 Presentation – On an approved change to the order of 

Agenda items, this presentation was completed before Agenda item F. Reports.  

2. Appointments to Board Committees—After the Board discussion, the following Committee 
appointments for 2025 were considered for approval. 

a. Finance Committee: Chair-Director Fedoroff, Member-Director Mumper 
b. Property & Facilities Committee: Chair-Director Mileur, Member-Director Mumper 
c. Healthcare Advocacy & Outreach Committee: Chair-Director Kulesa, Member-Director 

Mileur 
d. Development Committee: Chair-Director Mileur, Member-Director Fedoroff 
Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

Motion: Director Fedoroff motioned to approve the above Committee appointments for 
2025, Director Mumper seconded, and the Board approved the motion by roll call, 5/0. 

3. Request for Proposal (RFP) for Owner Advisor Services for the New Ambulance Station—
Director Mileur presented the RFP for Owner Advisor Services for the new ambulance station 
and answered questions. Director Fedoroff suggested a change on page 4 regarding the use 
of net vs. gross funding terminology.  

Page 4 of 261



December 17, 2024, Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

Motion: Director Fedoroff motioned to approve the RFP for Owner Advisor Services for the 
new ambulance station. Director Mumper seconded, and the Board approved the motion by 
roll call, 5/0. 

4. New Ambulance Unit-23 Proposed Financing – Director Fedoroff presented the proposed 
financing options for new ambulance Unit-23, recommending six-year long-term financing to 
allow for better cash flow.  

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

Motion: Director Mumper motioned to approve financing new ambulance unit 23 with a six-
year long-term loan through Republic First National. Director Mileur seconded, and the Board 
approved the motion by roll call, 5/0. 

5. Membership Associations—President Montalvo proposed new memberships with the 
Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) and the California Ambulance 
Association (CAA) and the discontinuation of the District’s current membership with the 
California Special Districts Association (CSDA).  

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

Motion: Director Fedoroff motioned to approve new memberships with ACHD and CAA and 
discontinue the current membership with CSDA. Director Mileur seconded, and the Board 
approved the motion by roll call on 5/0. 

6. Request for Proposal (RFP) for General Counsel Legal Services – President Montalvo 
presented the RFP for General Counsel Legal Services as the District has received a 
Resignation of District Counsel from Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & Green LLP 
(AMMCG) as they will no longer be providing representation to Special Districts.  

Public Comment: There were no public comments. 

Motion: Director Mileur motioned to approve the RFP for General Counsel Legal Services, 
Director Mumper seconded, and the Board approved the motion by roll call, 5/0. 

H. DECLARATION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

1. C-24 Citizens Oversight Committee 

2. Issuance of General Obligation Bonds 

3. General Counsel Legal Services Contract 

4. Fee Schedule 

5. Mid-Year Financial Review 

6. Key Performance Indicators Update 

7. Retiree Health Premiums (Closed Session) 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:24 am. 

    
 
 

Page 5 of 261



OPERATIONS REPORT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

January 28, 2025 

Operations Manager, Tim Nurge 
Supervisors Michael Bryant and Paul Hoover 

Operations Report for December 2024 

Operations Manager Nurge: 

• Transport Activity Report – In December 2024, there has been an increase of nine (9)
total incidents and a decrease of six (6) incidents requiring transport compared to
December 2023. We ended the year with four (4) more transports than we did in 2023.

• Response Times and Delays – In December 2024, 95.2% of calls were responded to within
ten (10) minutes in Cambria. Two (2) calls were delayed due to distance deep in the Park
Hill and Lodge Hill West areas. One (1) call was delayed due to incorrect dispatching
directions.

• San Luis Ambulance (SLA) Transports/Coverage – In December 2024, San Luis Ambulance
had (1) Code 3 and zero (0) Code 2 calls in the District service area. San Luis Ambulance
was dispatched to “move up and cover" Cambria nine (9) times Code 8 and zero (0) times
Code-11 for a total time covering the District response area of 6 hours and 1 minute.

CCHD responded to six (6) Code 3 and zero (0) Code 2 calls in the San Luis Ambulance
service area. District crews were dispatched to “move up and cover” the San Luis
Ambulance service area thirty-five (35) times Code 8 and two (2) times Code 11 for a total
time covering the San Luis Ambulance service area of 9 hours and 50 minutes.

 Code 2 Call - Emergency call that does not require the use of lights and sirens to
respond

 Code 3 Call - Emergency call that requires the use of lights and sirens to respond
 Code 8 Call - A term used when an ambulance is staged (parked) between two

response areas. (Summit/Villa Creek)
 Code 11 Call – A term used when an ambulance is staged (parked) between two

response areas. (Areas 2, 3 & 5)

Page 6 of 261



• Monterey County Calls – District crews responded to one (1) call in Monterey County 
during December 2024 compared to zero (0) calls in December 2023. Currently, CCHD is 
the only ALS Agency to cover the southern area of coastal Monterey County.  District staff 
monitor regular updates from Caltrans regarding the Highway One road closure. Highway 
One is not expected to be fully reopened in 2024. 

• Staffing/Employees – Our employees have been doing an excellent job of filling open 
positions as needed. The District hired a reserve EMT who began training in December 
and is expected to complete training in January 2025. Additionally, the CCHD has 
completed testing and interviews for the open full-time paramedic position and has hired 
a full-time paramedic who will start in January 2025. 

 
• Recruitment – Currently, there is nothing to report. 

 
• Training – Employees have been assigned a District-specific training module in Vector 

Solutions to align with the new protocols and medications added to the EMSA policies 
effective January 1, 2025. 

 
• IT – Nothing to report 

 
• Outreach – District crew members attended the Farmer’s Market for Hands-On CPR 

(HOCPR) on December 13, which may have had low attendance possibly due to the 
holidays and winter weather. The next HOCPR is scheduled for February 7, 2025. 

 
• Other – We are continuing to work with the SEIU Local 620 on updating the Policy Manual 

and SOP Manual. 

Prepared Key Performance Indicator (KPI) biannual report. 

 

Supervisor Bryant:   

Equipment/ Medications:   

• All expired supplies and medications have been replaced, ensuring that all ambulances 
are fully stocked. 

• The inventory for the Q4 Emergency Worker Exposure Control (EWEC) kit has been 
completed and submitted to the SLO County Office of Emergency Services (OES). 

• New medications required for the updated SLO County Emergency Medical Services 
Authority (EMSA) protocols are now in service and effective January 2025. 

SLO County Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA): 

• The nationwide shortage of IV fluids continues, and allocations are expected to be lifted 
in the first quarter of 2025. 

Page 7 of 261



• The District maintains an adequate supply of IV fluids by using multiple suppliers and 
ordering up to the maximum limit. 

• Current conservation strategies, such as discontinuing intravenous (IV) fluids for "to keep 
open" (TKO) administration, continue to be effective. 

• Supervisor Bryant is actively monitoring the IV fluid supply shortage and will inform the 
Board of any changes that may affect the District. 

 

Supervisor Hoover: 

Ambulance Unit Performance/Maintenance: 

• Unit 22 is experiencing issues with the A/C and heating controls. Perry Ford has performed 
a service check and repair. The Vallum line was replaced due to rodent damage. 

• Unit-20 – New tires 
• Rodent deterrents have been installed under the hoods of all ambulance units. 

 
Ambulance Unit Current Mileage 

18 237,680 
20 105,304 
21 44,202 
22 34,790 

 

Controlled Substance:  

• The Controlled Substance Report for the 4th quarter has been submitted to SLO EMSA. 
• All units are stocked with the appropriate amounts of Ketamine according to the new SLO 

County EMSA pain management policy, which took effect on January 1, 2025. 
 

Facility/Station Repairs:   

• There were no maintenance issues or repairs reported for the facilities in the month of 
December. 

Equipment: 

• No Report 

Page 8 of 261



DISTRICT ACTIVITY REPORT PAGE 1

12/01/2024 through 12/31/2024

1

1

-8Medical Transports

Local Patients
Non-Local Patients

Trauma Transports
Stand-bys
Public Assists/Relations

Traffic Accidents

Total Incidents

Total Patients

Total Transports

27
0

49
6
0

42
13

55

55118

Hospital Destinations

French 18
Sierra Vista
Twin Cities
Rendezvous w/Heli

33
4
0

Facility Not-Listed 0

Monterey County Responses

Medical Transports
Trauma Transports
Dry Runs

Total Incidents

0
0

1

38
1

41
8
0

127

38
11

49

49

22
25
1
1
0

2024 20242023 2023

Walk-in Public Relations 22

11
1 2

00

2024
0
0
0

0

-4
-2

-6

-6

4
-8
-3
1
0

0
0
1

1

9

Change Change

Change

2024 2023 Change

2023

Year-to-Date Comparison
Ambulance Response Statistics 

Total Responses
Patients Transported
Total Dry Runs

Stand-bys

1417
618
359

424

1792
614
428

729

2024 2023
-375

4
-69

-305

Total Monterey County Incidents 16 15 1

 Incident Totals  Transport Totals

Change

Stand-bys 0 0 0

STEMI Center (French) 02 2
Trauma Center (Sierra Vista) 75 -2

Dry Runs - CX Enroute 1820 2

Dry Runs - CX Enroute 182 263 -81

Dry Runs - w/Treatment 1617

Dry Runs - w/Treatment 175 165 10

JanuaryFrom 2024 December 31 2024to

Total Dry Runs 3437 3

Page 9 of 261



DISTRICT ACTIVITY REPORT PAGE 2
12/01/2024 through 12/31/2024

San Luis Ambulance Activity

Code 3 calls 
(calls into CCHD response area)

Code 8 9

Code 11 0

Code 2 calls 0

1

Cambria Community Healthcare District Activity

Code 3 calls 
(calls into SLAS response area)

Code 8 35

Code 11 2

Code 2 calls 0

6

Total time SLAS covered CCHD area =

Total time CCHD covered SLAS area = hrs mins9 50

Total time CCHD committed to other incidents (Month) = hrs mins96 47

hrs mins6 1

Definitions:

Code 8 : Cover two areas

Example: -Code 8 Villa Creek means covering Morro Bay response area and Cambria response
area

-Code 8 Hwy 46 Summit means covering Cambria response area and covering North
County response area (i.e. Paso Robles, Templeton, Atascadero and outlying areas)

Code 11 : Covering one area

-Code 11 Morro Bay means we are now only covering the Morro Bay response area
(i.e. Cayucos, Morro Bay, Los Osos)

Code 2 : Non-Emergency Call

Code 3 : Emergency Call

Example:     

}

}

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

=

Time-On-Task : TOT Refers to the amount of time committed to a call or task, more specifically, this is the amount 
of time a unit is unavailable to respond to a call in the District’s response area only. Units may still 
be available for calls outside the District’s response area during TOT periods depending on SLO 
County needs for mutual aid.

Page 10 of 261



Administrator/Finance Report 
Board of Directors Meeting 

January 28, 2025 

Linda Hendy, Administrator/Finance 

Finance: 

Reporting financial performance for December 2024 and the year-to-date fiscal year 2024/2025. 

Income Statement: 

December 2024 Monthly/Year-To-Date vs Budget 

o Income: In December, net ambulance billing amounted to $76,076, which was $5,328 favorable
to the budget. This brings the year-to-date ambulance net billing total to $528,599, which is
favorable to the budget by $25,109.  Accounts receivable adjustments for Bad Debt and Sent to
Collections will be recorded in January. Office Manager Harley has resubmitted insurance claims
and is currently awaiting reimbursement amounts.

• In December, there were 49 ambulance transport activities, compared to 55 during the
same month the previous year.

• In December, the District received a General and Special Tax revenue deposit of $193,405
unfavorable to budget in the amount of $8,595. Total year-to-date tax revenue
of $416,163 is favorable to budget in the amount of $27,163.

o Other Income: One dispatched call was provided to Monterey County in December, noting a
decrease in budgeted revenue in the amount of $2,000 and year-to-date unfavorable to budget
in the amount of $8,000.

o Expense: Total expenses in December were $8,392, unfavorable to budget, resulting in a
favorable year-to-date variance of $60,058.

• Payroll Expenses: In December, payroll expenses were favorable compared to the budget,
showing a positive variance of $5,618. However, the PERS Unfunded Liability expense has
increased by $5,978 monthly, resulting in a year-to-date unfavorable variance of $29,908.
A proposed budget adjustment for this increased expense will be presented to the Board
of Directors during the Mid-Year Budget Review in January.

• Operating Expenses: In December, operating expenses were $231 below the budget and
year-to-date expenses were favorable by $3,068.

• Fleet Expenses: In December, expenses exceeded the budget by $1,248; however, year-
to-date, they were favorable by $3,559.

• Other Expenses:  In December, the line item for Miscellaneous expenses amounting to
$3,488 included a payment to Accurate Mailing Service for the District Trust's annual
donation letter. A reimbursement from the District Trust was received and deposited in
January to cover this expense.

Page 11 of 261



 

 

o Net Income: The December financials show a positive net income of $13,679 for the month, 
mainly due to reduced expenses. Additionally, the year-to-date net income is favorable to the 
budget by $111,494.  

o Asset Payments/Cash Flow: December financials reflect the monthly payments of $2,100 for 
medical equipment (Zoll Monitors) and $3,625 for Ambulance Unit-22.  

Other Business: 

o The fiscal year 2023-2024 annual audit is complete and will be presented by Adam Guise, C.P.A., 
from Moss, Levy & Hartzheim during the January board meeting. 

o The District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Legal Counsel in December, with a final 
submission date of January 17, 2025. The Board of Directors will review the candidate's contract 
for approval upon final selection. 

o Administrator Hendy and Office Manager Harley have provided administrative services to the 
Property and Facility Committee, assisting with the issue of the Owner Advisor RFP. 

o Work continues to update the District Standard Operating Procedures (SOP). Administrator 
Hendy and the Operations Manager Nurge have met with SEIU representatives and are finalizing 
the SOP. District employees will receive a final copy in February. 

o Administrator Hendy prepared the necessary documents to establish the Independent Citizens’ 
Bond Oversight Committee. 

o Employee records for the District have been updated with CalPERS insurance premium rates for 
2025. 

 

 
 

Page 12 of 261



 December  December July - December July - December

 Actual  Budget Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance
Ambulance Revenue

Ambulance Billings 295,443               346,588             (51,146)               2,050,018               2,081,588               (31,570)               
Prior Year Income -                      -                       2,792                       -                           2,792                  
Total Ambulance Income 295,443               346,588             (51,146)               2,052,810               2,081,588               (28,778)               
Insurance Adjustments/Contra (219,367)             (270,000)            50,633                (1,524,211)              (1,565,918)             41,707                
Sent to Collections -                        (3,840)                3,840                  -                            (7,680)                     7,680                  
Bad Debt -                        (2,000)                2,000                  -                            (4,500)                     4,500                  
Ambulance Income 76,076                 70,748               5,328                  528,599                   503,490                  25,109                

Tax Income
General Tax 88,318                 90,000               (1,682)                 190,513                   177,000                  13,513                
Special Assessment Tax 105,087               112,000             (6,913)                 225,650                   212,000                  13,650                
Total Tax Income 193,405               202,000             (8,595)                 416,163                   389,000                  27,163                

Other Income
Monterey Contract 2,000                   4,000                  (2,000)                 14,000                     22,000                     (8,000)                 
Rental Income 300                       300                     -                       600                           600                          -                       
Misc. Income 15                         100                     (85)                       105                           600                          (495)                    
Bad Debt Recovery 288                       200                     88                        1,755                       1,650                       105                      
Grant Income -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Interest Income 2                           25                       (23)                       1,408                       1,100                       308                      
Stand By/Event Income -                        -                      -                       7,246                       -                           7,246                  
Donations -Amb. Procurement -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Total Other Income 2,605                   4,625                  (2,020)                 25,114                     25,950                     (836)                    

Total Income 272,085               277,373             (5,288)                 969,876                   918,440                  51,436                

Payroll Expenses
Administration 16,933                 15,420               (1,513)                 97,495                     92,520                     (4,975)                 
Full Time Employees 67,937                 75,500               7,563                  415,271                   464,000                  48,729                
Part Time Employees 21,228                 14,000               (7,228)                 117,783                   84,000                     (33,783)               
Payroll Tax Expense 5,513                   5,400                  (113)                    36,668                     32,400                     (4,268)                 
Employee Medical/Dental 17,627                 17,500               (127)                    109,029                   105,000                  (4,029)                 
PERS Pension Expense 8,224                   8,200                  (24)                       30,567                     51,200                     20,633                
PERS - Unfunded Liability 17,978                 12,000               (5,978)                 107,886                   78,000                     (29,886)               
Uniforms 444                       750                     306                      1,224                       4,500                       3,276                  
Workers Comp. Insurance 7,218                   8,500                  1,282                  19,288                     51,000                     31,712                
Retiree Health 8,535                   8,750                  215                      51,814                     52,500                     686                      
Total Payroll Expense 171,638               166,020             (5,618)                 987,026                   1,015,120               28,094                

Operating Expenses
Contacted Services -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Audit Fees -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Billing Services 790                       700                     (90)                       4,092                       4,200                       108                      
Other -                        360                     360                      -                            2,160                       2,160                  
Payroll Services 564                       525                     (39)                       2,350                       3,150                       800                      
Total Contracted Services 1,354                   1,585                  231                      6,442                       9,510                       3,068                  

Dues and Subscriptions 914                       220                     (694)                    10,431                     8,420                       (2,011)                 
Education/Travel/Mileage 324                       350                     26                        1,299                       2,100                       801                      
Election Expense -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Facility Maintenance 553                       1,000                  447                      4,343                       6,000                       1,657                  
Legal -                        1,000                  1,000                  1,350                       6,000                       4,650                  
Liability Insurance 6,443                   6,500                  57                        24,443                     39,000                     14,557                
License/Permits 486                       500                     14                        1,907                       3,000                       1,093                  
Office and Computer Supplies 1,143                   1,625                  482                      10,080                     9,750                       (330)                    
Storage -                        -                      -                       480                           480                          -                       
Training 11                         450                     439                      674                           2,700                       2,026                  
Utilities 3,214                   2,500                  (714)                    16,577                     14,700                     (1,877)                 
Total Operating Expenses 14,441                 15,730               1,289                  78,026                     101,660                  23,634                

Cambria Community Healthcare District
Summary of Revenues and Expenses

DECEMBER 2024, and Year-To-Date JULY-DECEMBER 2024/2025

Page 1 Page 13 of 261



 December  December July - December July - December

 Actual  Budget Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance

Cambria Community Healthcare District
Summary of Revenues and Expenses

DECEMBER 2024, and Year-To-Date JULY-DECEMBER 2024/2025

Fleet Expenses:
Communication Equipment 792                       -                      (792)                    792                           -                           (792)                    
Fuel 1,990                   3,000                  1,010                  14,880                     18,000                     3,120                  
Unit - 18 14                         650                     636                      6,125                       4,100                       (2,025)                 
Unit - 20 1,154                   -                      (1,154)                 1,710                       500                          (1,210)                 
Unit - 21 173                       250                     77                        633                           1,500                       867                      
Unit - 22 -                        200                     200                      1,686                       2,300                       614                      
Interest Expense -                        -                      -                       -                            775                          775                      
Medical Supplies/Equipment 6,226                   5,000                  (1,226)                 27,789                     30,000                     2,211                  
Total Fleet Expenses 10,348                 9,100                  (1,248)                 53,616                     57,175                     3,559                  

Total Operating Expenses 24,789                 24,830               41                        131,641                   158,835                  27,194                

Other Expenses
Bank and Credit Card Charges 201                       300                     99                        1,603                       1,800                       197                      
Bond Expense 195                       -                      (195)                    6,513                       5,000                       (1,513)                 
Contingency/Outreach/Public Ed. 38                         500                     462                      899                           3,000                       2,101                  
Equipment -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Miscellaneous 3,488                   300                     (3,188)                 3,488                       1,800                       (1,688)                 
PP-GEMT Fee -                        -                      -                       18,372                     24,000                     5,628                  
Sales Tax 107                       115                     8                          643                           690                          47                        
Total Other Expenses 4,030                   1,215                  (2,815)                 31,520                     36,290                     4,770                  

Total Expenses 200,457               192,065             (8,392)                 1,150,187               1,210,245               60,058                

Net Operating Income 71,629                 85,308               (13,679)               (180,311)                 (291,805)                 111,494              

Other Income/Expense
Grant /Equipment  Procurement -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Covid Relief -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       
Total Other Income -                        -                      -                       -                            -                           -                       

Net Income 71,629                 85,308               (13,679)               (180,311)                 (291,805)                 111,494              

Asset Payments - Cash Flow 2024-2025

Asset Monthly Payments Dec Actual July - December

Zoll Monitors                    (2,100)                  (2,100) -                                              (8,400)                       (8,400) -                       

Ambulance Unit 22                    (3,625)                  (3,625) -                                           (14,500)                     (14,500) -                       
Net Income less Asset Expense 65,904                 79,583               (13,679)               (203,211)                 (314,705)                 111,494              

Page 2 Page 14 of 261



Pacific Premier Bank Operating Account
Beginning Balance 137,486.37$             
Income 273,355.51               
Tax Income
Less Checking Expenses (290,825.58)              
Bank Fee(s) (5.25)                         
Ending Balance 120,011.05$     

Pacific Premier Bank Money Market Account
Reserve Account
Beginning Balance 20,190.83$               
Transfer from Operating Accont 50,000.00                 
Interest 1.95                          
Ending Balance 70,192.78$       

Local Agency Investment Fund Account 
Operating Reserves
Beginning Balance 59,845.92$               
Transfer from Operating Account (50,000.00)                
Interest 709.71                      
Ending Balance 10,555.63$       

ALL ACCOUNTS TOTAL 200,759.46$     

PPB Trust Account
Beginning Balance 54,975.72$               
Deposit 12,819.56                 
Less Checking Expense -                            

Bank fee (paper statement) (2.00)                         
Withdrawal  payables(Qgiv) -                            
Ending Balance 67,793.28$       

Accounts Prior Year Total Comparison (Not including Trust Acount)
DECEMBER 2024 200,759.46$             
DECEMBER 2023 259,541.15$             
Difference (58,781.69)$              

Cambria Community Healthcare District
Monthly Banking Financial Report 

DECEMBER 2024

Page 15 of 261



������������	
����������������������������������������� !��"���#�����������$%$&

'(()*+,�-+./.��0)/1+23�4+5*+)2�673�898:� ��6;8

�"�< �=">?"@�AB>��CD< >EF >"F< F<FBG�<?@=AD�AB> "FBE>�HHIJJ�DD�KLMNLO�BP������QHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJH ?����S���� WINXYJJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXI R�#�Z�����F�Z���� WHHLYNIHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXL [��! ���\���������?��]���� @�������̂�HJJWLXHJJVHWJJH WHMVYINHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXX =� �����_�?�!��� WH̀JLHYXIHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXM a���T�R��QT�� WNLYJJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJI _�����\��Q��b��Z���\���������?��]���� @#��̂�HJLHXcJdMI WHXHYXcHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXd F���T�e�f���S��U WVMYJJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJJ ?�=F"�DGg F�S ��̂�dLdM�DGg���]���� WÌXcVYLNHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXV @��W����@�SP#���� WMdXYJJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXJ "��Q���_��� WNcNYcJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXN @�������@�P! "���̂�@@NL WHXdYMVHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXH "�������F����Z� WHLJYJJHIGJNGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VLXc >�������[���Q�̀�A��Y WHNdYNIHIGJLGIJIN @T��U D�!�����D��P�� D�!������HJGHMGINWHJGVHGIJIN�D�!���!�HHGJLGIJIN WLH̀JMLYMMHIGJMGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f D[h<�W���Z��Q�HVLWV "���̂�NVdcNcMHVLWV WHHYNcHIGJMGIJIN @T��U @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WdLYJJHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WIJ̀IcHYMIHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f D[h<�W�̂"���Z��Q�VNcWX "���̂�XXdMNJIVNcWX WLIIYNLHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f \>RB "����̂����Z��Q����HLVI�h�HLcL WINcYNcHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f \>RB "����̂����Z��Q����HLVI�h�HLcL WHHJYXXHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f \>RB "����̂����Z��Q����HLVI�h�HLcL WXXXYcHHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f D[h<�W���Z��Q����cHMWI "���̂�VccMHXMcHMWI WH̀HIVYJVHIGJXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO "@f D[h<�W���Z��Q�cHJWc "���̂�LHdXILccHJWc WHIMYVIHIGHJGIJIN <iP���� _B=g�D"C�@@ WHLMYJJHIGHJGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJN F���T�e�f���S��U WdJYJJHIGHJGIJIN @T��U "@f @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WL̀MJIYMIHIGHJGIJIN @T��U "@f @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WH̀VINYLJHIGHJGIJIN @T��U "@f @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WH̀HVXYLMHIGHJGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJV �����R������� R����P#��T�������S #���S��� WHcJYJJHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJd R�#�Z�����F�Z���� WIIcYJHHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJX f�����j�������h�"#��̀�A��Y WH̀HLVYLJHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJM "��Q���_��� WdHNYLHHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHN ���PT!�f#����� WNVYcHHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHH FD�@��#Z����T����Q��� WLXXYJJHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHJ F�������@�#���!����P���� "���̂�NHVJWcHJHXLH WIHHYJIHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHV ?<AE�g�����MIJ WIJXYLIHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJL "Z�S�U��F����U��F�ZZ���@#S �����Z�h�[���� WHJJYJJHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMJc @�S ����f��Ze����@����� "���̂�IJL WcMYdJHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHI F�Y�k���S!�a������ WLcYLMHIGHHGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHL �����R������� WVIYLMHIGHVGIJIN <iP���� <�A? WILJYJJHIGHdGIJIN <iP���� <�A? WHLYJJHIGHdGIJIN <iP���� <�A? WHIJYJJHIGHXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHM k�S��=�! b�����������]� WHLIYcVHIGHXGIJIN <iP���� D���l���D��S����R��U g"A\�_���������l���\�� WNJYJJHIGHXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHd k�T��g�� ��Q <F��g��Y�����e���h�g�]���������S #���S��� WIJJYJJHIGHXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHc a��mS���_�����K@#���Q��O "���̂�HXJIVH WMdYXLHIGHXGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMHX ?<AE�g�����MIJ WIJXYLIHIGIJGIJIN @T��U @��D<=?�\������?��]�������]����� WdLYJJHIGIJGIJIN @T��U "@f D�!�����D��P�� D�!�����HIWJHWIN���HIWHLWIN�D�!Z�!�HIWIJWIN WNX̀ILLYJJHIGIJGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMIJ "������������l�@"�f����T�������������� WXcMYJJHIGIVGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMII R�#�Z�����F�Z���� WÌHVcYJcHIGIVGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMIM �����Z�F����Z! WcJXYHIHIGIVGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMIN ����!���U��U� WÌNXHYcVHIGIVGIJIN R����D�!S����K@T��UO VMIV �������@����Q� WH̀LIIYIN
Page 16 of 261



������������	
����������������������������������������� !��"���#�����������$%$&

'(()*+,�-+./.��0)/1+23�4+5*+)2�673�898:� ��8;8

�"�< �=">?"@�AB>��CD< >EF >"F< F<FBG�<?@=AD�AB> "FBE>�HIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSIT U��V��U��N��W>�X! WHYKSLZ[\HIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSI\ �������@�VV��X WSKKZTLHIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJK ]���̂���_������� "���̀�ITHKKKHaLWKKKKI WLL\ZS\HIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSIH "N�������b�c��A��#������@��dZ D����!̀�\aKIIWKKKKH���V�KKKKI WHYJ[\ZSKHIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJH e����F�V�����@��dZ WIYK[HZKaHIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSI[ ?�X��U���Wb�f�@����?�X�� WHTIZTJHIGIJGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSIa F#�#����c�BN�P� g��#d�A�̀ �gKKKMeS_ WHSaZKKHIGISGIKIL <hd���� i��Q�M!��� D�!�����HIWKHWIL���HIWH\WIL�D�!V�!�HIWIKWIL WITKZHHHIGITGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WTSZaJHIGITGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WH\YJ[aZJJHIGITGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WS\IZT\HIGITGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WL[KZ\aHIGITGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WHYJ\[ZHTHIGJKGIKIL @P��Q @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� WHYJILZ\KHIGJKGIKIL @P��Q @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� W\YHaKZTHHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJS iM���f��Y�A��Z A�k����̀�JJLJ[L WLaZLaHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJT b�c��"����� WHY\TaZ[aHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJL @P������@�NN#��������� "���̀�aLHJHIKTaKKLLIIa WLISZ\KHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJJ M�#�V�����F�V���� WS[\ZIaHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJI "��X���_��� WLKaZJTHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJa ?�=F"�DGb F�N ��̀�T\TS�DGb���k���� W\YHJLZKJHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJ[ ?�=F"�_@ F�N ��̀�T\TS�_G@���k���� W\Y\LJZJSHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSLK "��#�����F�����X�?��k��� A�k����̀�H\LaS WJYLaaZJIHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR "@U l?�?����M��Q WJYSIHZLaHIGJKGIKIL <hd���� <�A? WSKZ\KHIGJKGIKIL @P��Q @��D<=?�j������?��k�������k����� W[aHZHKHIGJKGIKIL M����D�!N����O@P��QR JSJ\ U��d��X�U��V�U����P�<V#������ A�k����̀�LJa\ WHHZKKHIGJHGIKIL <hd���� D���c���D��N����M��Q W\ZI\

Page 17 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 01 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Jon Isom, Financial Advisor, Isom Advisors 

Dr. Laurie Mileur, Director 

DATE: January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION: Actions Related to the Sale of General Obligation Bonds – Resolutions 53-25 and 51-25 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No financial impact on the District’s operating accounts. 

DISCUSSION 

On November 5, 2024, two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District approved Bond Measure C-24, 
authorizing the Cambria Community Healthcare District to issue general obligation bonds in the maximum 
original principal amount of $5,900,000.  

Resolution 53-25 is presented to the District’s Board of Directors for approval to certify the results of Bond 
Measure C-24, which was approved by more than two-thirds of the District’s voters. 

Resolution 51-25 is presented to the District’s Board of Directors for approval to authorize the issuance 
and sale of the general obligation bonds by a negotiated sale to Oppenheimer Inc., and to approve related 
documents and actions regarding the issuance. Approved in form by adoption of Resolution 51-25 are the 
Fiscal Agent Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and Preliminary Official Statement. These documents 
are available for review. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Resolution 53-25

2. Resolution 51-25

3. Fiscal Agent Agreement

4. Preliminary Official Statement

5. Bond Purchase Agreement

BOARD ACTION 

Motion to approve Resolution 53-25. 

Motion to approve Resolution 51-25. 

Page 18 of 261



RESOLUTION NO. 53-25 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY 
HEALTHCARE DISTRICT CONFIRMING CANVASS OF VOTES CAST IN GENERAL 

ELECTION AND DECLARING ELECTION RESULTS FOR BOND MEASURE  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Cambria Community Healthcare 
District (the “District”), in the County of San Luis Obispo (“San Luis Obispo County”), State of 
California, duly passed and adopted Resolution No. 44-24 (the “Election Resolution”) calling a 
general election within the boundaries of the District on November 5, 2024 (the “Bond Election”), 
which was ordered to be consolidated with the State of California general election, for the purpose 
of submitting to the electors the following measure (the “Bond Measure”):  

“To replace the 67-year-old ambulance station/ healthcare facility to 
meet current County codes and standards and improve safety and 
security for residents, emergency responders, and visitors, shall 
Cambria Community Healthcare District’s measure be adopted 
authorizing $5,900,000 of bonds at legal rates, generating on 
average $423,300 annually at rates of approximately $7.90 per 
$100,000 assessed value, while bonds are outstanding, with annual 
audits, independent citizens’ oversight committee, NO money for 
salaries and all funds spent locally?” 

WHEREAS, notice of the Bond Election was thereafter duly given as required by law and 
by the Election Resolution; and the Bond Election was duly held in accordance with law and with 
the Election Resolution;  

WHEREAS, the Registrar of Voters of San Luis Obispo County has canvassed the votes 
cast at the election and submitted a report of the returns of the election (a “Canvass and 
Statement of Results”) to this Board;  

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Canvass and Statement of Results as required 
by law, and it appears from the Canvass and Statement of Results that the Bond Measure was 
approved by more than two-thirds of the votes cast; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND ORDERED, as follows; 

Section 1.   This Board hereby finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true 
and correct. 

Section 2.  At the Bond Election held on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, the Bond Measure 
appeared on the ballot thereof and the total number of votes cast for the Bond Measure were as 
follows: 

Yes: 3,134 (76.78%) 
No: 948 (23.22%) 

Section 3.  The Clerk of the Board is hereby instructed to enter this Resolution confirming 
the canvass of returns upon the minutes of this Board as a statement of the results of the Bond 
Election held on November 5, 2024.  

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 19 of 261



Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community 
Healthcare District at a regular meeting thereof held this 28th day of January 2025, by the 
following vote:   
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Cecilia Montalvo 
Board President 

ATTEST: 

Igor Fedoroff 
Secretary of the Board 

Page 20 of 261



RESOLUTION NO. 51-25 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS AND APPROVING RELATED  

DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO  

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Sections 32000 et seq. (the 
“Local Health Care District Law”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Cambria Community 
HealthCare District (the “District”), in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California, ordered 
a special district election on November 5, 2024, for the purpose of submitting to the electors within 
the District the following measure (the “Bond Measure”):  

“To replace the 67-year-old ambulance station/ healthcare facility to 
meet current County codes and standards and improve safety and 
security for residents, emergency responders, and visitors, shall 
Cambria Community Healthcare District’s measure be adopted 
authorizing $5,900,000 of bonds at legal rates, generating on 
average $423,300 annually at rates of approximately $7.90 per 
$100,000 assessed value, while bonds are outstanding, with annual 
audits, independent citizens’ oversight committee, NO money for 
salaries and all funds spent locally?”  

WHEREAS, more than two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District, voting at the election, 
approved the Bond Measure, which authorized the issuance by the District of general obligation 
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $5,900,000 to finance the replacement of the 
ambulance station/healthcare facility and all related projects that may be undertaken by the District 
in accordance with the Bond Measure (the “Project”);  

WHEREAS, the District is empowered to issue general obligation bonds which are 
authorized by two-thirds of the qualified electors of the District pursuant to the Local Health Care 
District Law and Article 4.5, commencing with Section 53506, of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 
of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (collectively, the “Act”);  

WHEREAS, for the purpose of financing a portion of the Project, the District has 
determined at this time to issue its General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2024, Series A, in the 
maximum original principal amount of $5,900,000 (the “Bonds”) as the first series of bonds issued 
under the Bond Measure;  

WHEREAS, the Bonds are proposed to be issued under a Fiscal Agent Agreement by and 
between the District and a fiscal agent to be named therein (the “Fiscal Agent”);  

WHEREAS, the District has determined that a negotiated sale of the Bonds to 
Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., (the “Underwriter”) in accordance with the terms of a Bond Purchase 
Agreement between the District and the Underwriter (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) will result 
in a lower overall cost to the District than a public sale;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the “Code”), the Board has, following notice duly given, held a public hearing regarding the 
issuance of the Bonds, and now desires to approve the issuance of the Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 5852.1, the District has 
obtained and disclosed the information the information set forth in Appendix A hereto;  

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 21 of 261



  2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND ORDERED, as 
follows; 

 
Section 1. Recitals. Each of the above recitals is true and correct and is adopted by the 

Board.  
 

Section 2. Issuance of Bonds; Fiscal Agent Agreement. The issuance of the Bonds in 
a principal amount not to exceed $5,900,000, with a true interest cost not to exceed 8.00%, a final 
maturity not to exceed 30 years from their date of issuance, and an Underwriter’s discount not to 
exceed 1.00% of the original principal amount of the Bonds, is hereby authorized with the exact 
principal amount to be determined by the official signing the Bond Purchase Agreement in 
accordance with Section 7 below. The Board hereby determines that it is prudent in the 
management of its fiscal affairs to issue the Bonds. The Bonds shall mature on the dates and pay 
interest at the rates set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement to be executed on behalf of the 
District in accordance with Section 7 hereof. All other provisions of the Bonds shall be governed 
by the terms and conditions set forth in the Fiscal Agent Agreement, the form of which is on file 
with the Secretary of the Board and presented to this meeting, and which is hereby approved. 
The Fiscal Agent Agreement shall be executed by the President of the Board, the Vice President 
of the Board or the District Administrator (each an "Authorized Officer"), and attested by the 
Secretary of the Board, with such additions thereto and changes therein as the Authorized Officer 
executing the same deems necessary to enhance the security for the Bonds, to cure any 
ambiguity or defect therein if such addition or change does not materially alter the substance or 
content thereof, to insert the offering price(s), interest rate(s), selling compensation, principal 
amount per maturity, redemption dates and prices and such other related terms and provisions 
as limited by Section 7 hereof, or to conform any provisions therein to the Bond Purchase 
Agreement (defined below). Approval of such changes shall be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery of the Fiscal Agent Agreement by an Authorized Officer.  

 
The Bonds may be issued in one or more series, and any series may be issued on a 

federally taxable basis pursuant to Government Code Section 5900 et seq. If multiple series of 
the Bonds are issued, each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to give unique series 
designations to each such series as may be necessary or appropriate. 

 
Section 3. Preliminary and Final Official Statement. The Board hereby approves the 

Preliminary Official Statement describing the Bonds in substantially the form on file with the 
Secretary of the Board, with such additions and such changes therein an Authorized Officer may 
approve. The Board hereby approves the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement by the 
Underwriter, and, prior to the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, each Authorized 
Officer is authorized and directed, on behalf of the District, to execute a certificate on behalf of the 
District that deems the Preliminary Official Statement “final” pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Rule”).  

 
Following the sale of the Bonds, the Board hereby approves the execution of a final Official 

Statement, which shall include the information permitted to be excluded from the Preliminary Official 
Statement pursuant to the Rule (consisting of final pricing information with respect to the Bonds), 
and such changes and additions thereto deemed advisable by any Authorized Officer upon 
consultation with Disclosure Counsel (as defined herein). The final Official Statement will be 
delivered by the Underwriter to the purchasers of the Bonds. Each Authorized Officer is authorized 
and directed to execute the final Official Statement on behalf of the District, and to deliver to the 
Underwriter a certificate with respect to the information set forth in the final Official Statement. 

 
Section 4. Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The Board hereby approves the form of the 

Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached as an appendix to the Preliminary Official Statement on 

Page 22 of 261



  3 

file with the Secretary of the Board. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the Continuing Disclosure Certificate on behalf of the District in substantially the form 
attached to the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes therein as an Authorized Officer 
may approve, upon consultation with Disclosure Counsel, such approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.  
 

Section 5. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the District 
by the manual or facsimile signature of an Authorized Officer, and attested with the manual or 
facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board.  

 
Section 6. Covenants. The covenants set forth in the Fiscal Agent Agreement to be 

executed in accordance with Section 2 above are hereby approved, shall be deemed to be 
covenants of the Board and shall be complied with by the District and its officers. The Fiscal Agent 
Agreement shall constitute a contract between the District and the Owners of the Bonds. 

 
Section 7. Bond Purchase Agreement. The form of the Bond Purchase Agreement 

between the District and the Underwriter, on file with the Secretary of the Board and presented to 
this meeting, is hereby approved and any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute the 
Bond Purchase Agreement, with such additions thereto and changes therein relating to dates and 
numbers as are necessary to conform the Bond Purchase Agreement to the dates, amounts and 
interest rates applicable to the Bonds as of the sale date; provided, however, that the principal 
amount of the Bonds, the true interest cost with respect to the Bonds and the Underwriter’s 
discount shall not exceed the maximums set forth in Section 2 above. Approval of such additions 
and changes shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement. Subject to Section 2, each Authorized Officer is authorized to determine the day on 
which the Bonds are to be priced in order to attempt to produce the lowest borrowing cost for the 
District and may reject any terms presented by the Underwriter if determined not to be in the best 
interest of the District. 

 
Section 8. Professional Services. In connection with the sale and issuance of the 

Bonds, the Board hereby confirms the engagement of Isom Advisors, a Division of Urban Futures, 
Inc., to act as municipal advisor (“Municipal Advisor”) to the District, and the firm of Jones Hall, A 
Professional Law Corporation, to act as bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) and disclosure counsel 
(“Disclosure Counsel”) to the District. Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute an agreement with each such firm, in the respective forms on file with the Secretary of 
the Board. 

 
Section 9. Other Actions. Each Authorized Officer and the other officers and staff of the 

District responsible for the fiscal affairs of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take 
any actions and execute and deliver any and all documents as are necessary to accomplish the 
issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution and 
the fulfillment of the purposes of the Bonds as described in the Fiscal Agent Agreement, including 
without limitation any actions necessary or convenient to obtain municipal bond ratings. Each 
Authorized Officer may approve the purchase of a municipal bond insurance policy if the 
Authorized Officer, in consultation with the District’s municipal advisor and Bond Counsel, 
concludes such purchase would be beneficial for the District and the Bonds. Any actions 
previously taken by an Authorized Officer in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby 
ratified and confirmed. If any Authorized Officer is unavailable to sign any document authorized 
for execution herein, any other member of the Board or any Authorized Officer, or his or her written 
designee, may sign such document.   

 
Section 10. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its 

adoption.  
 

Page 23 of 261



  4 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community 

Healthcare District at a regular meeting thereof held this 28th day of January 2025, by the 
following vote:   

 
 
AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

ABSTAIN:   
 
 
 

 
 

       
Cecilia Montalvo 
Board President 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       

Igor Fedoroff 
Secretary of the Board 

 
 

 

Page 24 of 261



  A-1 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 5852.1 DISCLOSURE* 

 
 

1. True Interest Cost of the Bonds: 4.803419% 
 
2. Finance charge of the Bonds, being the sum of all fees and charges paid to third 

parties, consisting of costs of issuing the Bonds in the amount of approximately 
$323,507.99, which includes an estimate for bond insurance premium, which may 
be obtained if recommended for the purpose of achieving interest rate savings, plus 
estimated underwriter’s compensation of $59,000.00.  

 
3. Proceeds of the Bonds expected to be received by the District, net of proceeds for 

Costs of Issuance in (2) above to be paid from principal, capitalized interest and 
reserves (if any) from the principal amount of the Bonds: $5,700,000.00.  

 
4. Total Payment Amount for the, being the sum of all debt service to be paid on the 

Bonds to final maturity: $13,003,194.44. 
 
   
*All amounts and percentages are estimates and are made in good faith by the District based on 
information available as of the date of adoption of this Resolution. Estimates include certain assumptions 
regarding interest rates available in the bond market and assume the issuance Bonds in a principal 
amount of $5,900,000. 

 

Page 25 of 261



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 26 of 261



Page 27 of 261



Page 28 of 261



Page 29 of 261



Page 30 of 261



Page 31 of 261



Page 32 of 261



Page 33 of 261



Page 34 of 261



Page 35 of 261



Page 36 of 261



Page 37 of 261



Page 38 of 261



Page 39 of 261



Page 40 of 261



Page 41 of 261



Page 42 of 261



Page 43 of 261



Page 44 of 261



Page 45 of 261



Page 46 of 261



Page 47 of 261



Page 48 of 261



Page 49 of 261



Page 50 of 261



Page 51 of 261



Page 52 of 261



Page 53 of 261



Page 54 of 261



Page 55 of 261



Page 56 of 261



Page 57 of 261



Page 58 of 261



Page 59 of 261



Page 60 of 261



Page 61 of 261



Page 62 of 261



Page 63 of 261



Page 64 of 261



Page 65 of 261



Page 66 of 261



Page 67 of 261



Page 68 of 261



Page 69 of 261



Page 70 of 261



Page 71 of 261



Page 72 of 261



Page 73 of 261



Page 74 of 261



Page 75 of 261



Page 76 of 261



Page 77 of 261



Page 78 of 261



Page 79 of 261



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 80 of 261



Page 81 of 261



Page 82 of 261



Page 83 of 261



Page 84 of 261



Page 85 of 261



Page 86 of 261



Page 87 of 261



Page 88 of 261



Page 89 of 261



Page 90 of 261



Page 91 of 261



Page 92 of 261



Page 93 of 261



Page 94 of 261



Page 95 of 261



Page 96 of 261



Page 97 of 261



Page 98 of 261



Page 99 of 261



Page 100 of 261



Page 101 of 261



Page 102 of 261



Page 103 of 261



Page 104 of 261



Page 105 of 261



Page 106 of 261



Page 107 of 261



Page 108 of 261



Page 109 of 261



Page 110 of 261



Page 111 of 261



Page 112 of 261



Page 113 of 261



Page 114 of 261



Page 115 of 261



Page 116 of 261



Page 117 of 261



Page 118 of 261



Page 119 of 261



Page 120 of 261



Page 121 of 261



Page 122 of 261



Page 123 of 261



Page 124 of 261



Page 125 of 261



Page 126 of 261



Page 127 of 261



Page 128 of 261



Page 129 of 261



Page 130 of 261



Page 131 of 261



Page 132 of 261



Page 133 of 261



Page 134 of 261



Page 135 of 261



Page 136 of 261



Page 137 of 261



Page 138 of 261



Page 139 of 261



Page 140 of 261



Page 141 of 261



Page 142 of 261



Page 143 of 261



Page 144 of 261



Page 145 of 261



Page 146 of 261



Page 147 of 261



Page 148 of 261



Page 149 of 261



Page 150 of 261



Page 151 of 261



Page 152 of 261



Page 153 of 261



Page 154 of 261



Page 155 of 261



Page 156 of 261



Page 157 of 261



Page 158 of 261



Page 159 of 261



Page 160 of 261



Page 161 of 261



Page 162 of 261



Page 163 of 261



Page 164 of 261



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 165 of 261



Page 166 of 261



Page 167 of 261



Page 168 of 261



Page 169 of 261



Page 170 of 261



Page 171 of 261



Page 172 of 261



Page 173 of 261



Page 174 of 261



Page 175 of 261



Page 176 of 261



Page 177 of 261



Page 178 of 261



Page 179 of 261



Page 180 of 261



Page 181 of 261



Page 182 of 261



Page 183 of 261



Page 184 of 261



Page 185 of 261



Page 186 of 261



Page 187 of 261



Page 188 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 02 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Administrator Linda Hendy 

DATE: January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION: Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit 

RECOMMENDATION 

Presentation of audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, by Adam Guise, CPA, 
(Partner) Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP. 

FISCAL IMPACT  

The District’s net position changed by $5,527 as of June 30, 2024, a decrease from the prior year.  

DISCUSSION  

The District is in year two of a three-year agreement with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP to provide annual auditing 
services and year-end financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
The firm's audit team, led by Adam Guise, CPA, conducted an on-site audit testing and found the financial 
statements to present fairly, in all material respects, confirming the District's financial position as of June 30, 2024. 

In addition, the annual financial report requires that the District provide management discussion and analysis 
(MD&A) information to supplement the basic financial statements.  

The Annual Financial Report is divided into three basic sections: 

1. Introductory section

2. Financial section includes:

a. Independent Auditor’s Report
b. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
c. Basic Financial Statements
d. Required Supplementary Information

3. Auditors Findings and Responses

CONCLUSION  

The audited financial statements are presented for the Board of Directors review and approval. 

ATTACHMENT(S)  

1. CCHD Audited Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

BOARD ACTION

Review and receive the fiscal year 2023-2024 financial audit as presented.

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 189 of 261



Cambria Community 
Healthcare District 

FINANCIAL      
STATEMENTS 

   MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM LLP 
       Certified Public Accounts 

June 30, 2024 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 190 of 261



Page 191 of 261



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                             FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 
 

Page 192 of 261



Page 193 of 261



Page 194 of 261



Page 195 of 261



Page 196 of 261



Page 197 of 261



Page 198 of 261



Page 199 of 261



Page 200 of 261



Page 201 of 261



Page 202 of 261



Page 203 of 261



Page 204 of 261



Page 205 of 261



Page 206 of 261



Page 207 of 261



Page 208 of 261



Page 209 of 261



Page 210 of 261



Page 211 of 261



Page 212 of 261



Page 213 of 261



Page 214 of 261



Page 215 of 261



Page 216 of 261



Page 217 of 261



Page 218 of 261



Page 219 of 261



Page 220 of 261



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

               REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Page 221 of 261



Page 222 of 261



Page 223 of 261



Page 224 of 261



Page 225 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 03 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Linda Hendy, Administrator 

DATE:  January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION:  Ambulance Unit-23 Loan Agreement – Resolution 52-25 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend approving Resolution 52-25. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Financing Ambulance Unit-23 in the amount of $143,000. 

DISCUSSION 

On November 19, 2024, the Board of Directors approved a modified purchase agreement with Redsky 
Emergency Vehicles for one (1) Crestline Type III Ambulance at a cost of $206,560.74. Community 
donations to the District Trust account and a 2024 grant award from the Cambria Community Council 
provided a down payment of $63,560.74, leaving a remaining principal balance of $143,000. 

At the Board meeting on December 17, 2024, the District Directors unanimously approved financing 
through Republic First National Corporation. To proceed with the Government Obligation Contract with 
Republic First National Corporation, Resolution 52-25 is required. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Resolution 52-25 

2. Republic First National Corporation Government Obligation Contract 

BOARD ACTION  

Motion to approve Resolution 52-25. 

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 226 of 261



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

CAMBRIA, CALIFORNIA     JANUARY 28, 2025 
 

 
RESOLUTION 52-25 

 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A  

CRESTLINE FORD E-450 TYPE III AMBULANCE 
(VIN # 1FDWE3FN9SDD30243)  

PURCHASED FROM REDSKY EMERGENCY VEHICLES 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the “District”), provides ambulance 

services to the Northern Area of San Luis Obispo County as authorized by statute and by the San Luis 
Obispo County Public Health Department through the Emergency Medical Services Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the District is a healthcare district duly organized and existing under and pursuant to 
the laws of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2024, the District Board of Directors unanimously approved a 
motion to purchase a Type Ill ambulance with an estimated delivery in Fiscal Year 2024/2025; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the ambulance and equipment purchase will be provided through 
financing with a selected finance company, grant funds received from Cambria Community Council, 
and community donations held in the District Trust account; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to secure financing in the amount of $143,000 for the 
acquisition of a Crestline Ford E-450 Type III Ambulance; and  

WHEREAS, Republic First National Corporation through KS State Bank has provided a cost-
effective six-year installment sale financing arrangement at a 6.53% interest rate; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Government Code Section § 5852.1, the Board of 
Directors has obtained and disclosed the information set forth in Exhibit A hereto; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community 
Healthcare District as follows: 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 227 of 261



 
 
 

1. The District Board of Directors finds and determines Republic First National Corporation 
through KS State Bank as the preferred financing option for purchasing the Crestline Ford 
E-450 Type Ill Ambulance (the “Property”), 

2. The President of the Board of Directors, the Administrator, or a designee in writing (each 
an "Authorized Officer") is hereby authorized to enter into an installment Sale Agreement 
with Republic First National Corporation through KS State Bank to finance the Property with 
a six-year financing term with a 6.53% interest rate. 

3. The Secretary of the Board or other appropriate District officer is hereby authorized and 
directed to attest the signature of the Authorized Officer as may be required or appropriate 
in connection with the execution and delivery of the installment Sale. 

4. The Authorized Officer and other officers of the District each hereby authorized and 
directed, jointly and severally, to take any and all actions and to execute and deliver any and 
all documents, agreements, and certificates which they may deem necessary or advisable 
in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms of this Resolution and the 
Installment Sale. Such actions are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 

5. The Installment Sale is hereby designated as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" within the 
meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"). The District, together with the subordinate entities of the District, does not 
reasonably expect to issue during the calendar year in which the Installment Sale is issued 
more than $10,000,000 of obligations which it could designate as "qualified tax-exempt 
obligations" under Section 26S(b) of the Code. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Cambria Community Healthcare District Board of Directors of San 
Luis Obispo County of State of California on January 28, 2025. 
 
 

 ____________________________ 
Cecilia Montalvo 

CCHD Board President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Igor Fedoroff 
CCHD Board Secretary 
 

Page 228 of 261



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 229 of 261



Page 230 of 261



Page 231 of 261



Page 232 of 261



Page 233 of 261



Page 234 of 261



Page 235 of 261



Page 236 of 261



Page 237 of 261



Page 238 of 261



Page 239 of 261



Page 240 of 261



Page 241 of 261



Page 242 of 261



Page 243 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 04 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Dr. Laurie Mileur, Director 

DATE: January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION: Establish Independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee for Measure C-24 – Resolution 50-25 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommendation to fulfill the requirement of establishing the creation of an independent Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee for Measure C-24.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

DISCUSSION 

The Cambria Community Healthcare District (“District”) has successfully obtained authorization from its voters 
to issue up to $5,900,000 in general obligation bonds for the construction of a new ambulance station. While 
these bonds are outstanding, the District is required to implement appropriate accountability measures for the 
bond proceeds in accordance with California Government Code § 53410, which includes the establishment of an 
independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee. 

The following attachments are submitted to the District Board of Directors for review and approval to form the 
independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee for Measure C-24. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. About the independent Citizen’s Bond Oversight Committee

2. Independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Bylaws

3. Resolution 50-25 establishing an independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee

BOARD ACTION 

Motion to approve Resolution 50-25 establishing an independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee for 
Measure C-24. 

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 244 of 261



Cambria Community Healthcare District – Measure C-24 

Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee 

About the Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee 

The formally adopted roles and responsibilities of the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
(the “Committee”) can be found in the Committee Bylaws. The following provides summary 
information about the committee. 

What is the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee? 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the 
“District”) has established a Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee to review expenditures 
from construction activity associated with the Measure C-24 General Obligation Bond, 
which District voters approved in November 2024. The Committee’s purpose is to review 
expenditures from the proceeds of the Measure C-24 General Obligation Bond and the 
construction activity associated therewith and to inform the public about the use of the 
proceeds.   

Who serves on the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee? 

The Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee consists of five members, with at least one member 
from each of the following groups: 

a) One member who is active in a business organization representing the business
community located within the District.

b) One member active in a senior citizen's organization.

c) One member appointed by the selection committee as an at-large member.

d) One member shall be a senior citizen, and

e) One member shall be both a parent or guardian of a child in the District.

The Committee may not include any employee or official of the District or any person who 
owns or is employed by a vendor, contractor, or consultant of the District. 

The term for Committee members is two (2) years from the date of the member’s 
appointment. Members may not serve more than three consecutive terms. 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 245 of 261



What will the Committee do? 

The Committee will meet with District staff to review bond expenditures and shall present to 
the Board, in a public session, an annual report summarizing the District’s compliance and 
the Committee’s activities for the preceding year. 

How often will the Committee meet? 

The Committee is required to meet at least one time per year or more frequently as it deems 
necessary to fulfill its duty. It is estimated at this time that the Committee will meet 
approximately two times per year, with specific meeting dates determined by the 
Committee. 

How is the Committee selected? 

Committee members will be appointed by the District’s Board of Directors, taking into 
account: 

• The applicants' professional and/or practical experience;

• The applicants' contributions to his/her community;

• The diversity of experience on the Committee as a whole; and

• Representation on the Committee from various communities within the District,
including the requirements for representation described above.

How do I apply to be a member? 

Interested persons are encouraged to apply for the independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight 
Committee by submitting a resume and cover letter (1-2 pages each) to the District 
Administrator at Lhendy@cambria-healthcare.org. Applications will be considered by the 
Board on a rolling basis. So, even if a current position is unavailable, applications will be held 
for consideration as future opportunities become available. 

Page 246 of 261

mailto:Lhendy@cambria-healthcare.org


Cambria Community Healthcare District – Measure C-24 

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Bylaws 

 Section 1 - Committee Established.  The Cambria Community Healthcare District (the 
“District”) successfully obtained authorization from the District’s voters to issue up to 
$5,900,000 of bonds at legal rates at the election conducted on November 5, 2024 (the 
“Election”). While bonds are outstanding, the District is now obligated to establish 
appropriate accountability measures for such bond proceeds in accordance with Cal. Gov’t 
Code § 53410.   Pursuant to Section 8, paragraph (f) of Resolution 44-24 of the District Board 
of Directors, passed and adopted on May 28, 2024, these accountability measures include 
the appointment of “an independent citizens’ oversight committee to ensure that Bond 
proceeds are expended only for the purposes described in the measure approved by the 
voters.” The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the “Board”) 
hereby establishes the Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee (the “Committee”), which shall 
have the duties and rights set forth in these Bylaws.  The Committee does not have legal 
capacity independent from these bylaws and any other actions taken by the District Board 
of Directors. 

Section 2 - Purposes.  The purpose of the Committee is to review expenditures from the 
proceeds of the Measure C-24 General Obligation Bond and the construction activity 
associated therewith and to inform the public about the use of the proceeds of the general 
obligation bonds issued pursuant to the Election (the “Bond Proceeds”). The Committee 
shall be deemed to be subject to the Ralph M. Brown Public Meetings Act, Cal. Gov’t Code § 
54950 et seq., and shall conduct its meetings in accordance with the provisions thereof.  The 
District shall provide necessary administrative support to the Committee as shall be 
consistent with the Committee’s purposes. 

The Committee shall confine itself specifically to oversight of the Bond Proceeds generated 
under Measure C-24.  Regular and deferred maintenance projects and all monies generated 
from other sources shall fall outside the scope of the Committee’s review. 

Section 3 - Duties.  To carry out its stated purposes, the Committee shall perform only the 
duties set forth in Sections 3.1, 3.2, and 3.3, and shall refrain from those activities set forth 
in Sections 3.4 and 3.5. 

3.1 Inform the Public.  The Committee shall inform the public concerning the District’s 
expenditure of Bond Proceeds.  In fulfilling this duty, all official communications to either the 
Board or the public shall come from the Chair of the Committee acting on behalf of the 
Committee.  The Chair shall only release information that reflects the majority view of the 

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 247 of 261



Committee, as expressed by an action of the Committee taken at a duly noticed, public 
meeting of the Committee. 

3.2 Review Expenditures.  The Committee shall review expenditure reports produced by the 
District to ensure that; (a) Bond Proceeds were expended only for the purposes set forth in 
Measure C-24; and (b) no Bond Proceeds were used for administrative salaries or other 
operating expenses. 

3.3 Annual Report.  The Committee shall present to the Board, in public session, an annual 
written report which shall include the following: 

(a) A statement indicating whether the District is in compliance with the Measure’s
requirement that bond proceeds are spent only on projects listed in the Bond Project
List (both individually and collectively, the “Projects”); and

(b) A summary of the Committee’s proceedings and activities for the preceding year.

3.4   Duties of the Board/Administrator.  In accordance with the California Health Care 
District Law, Cal. Gov’t Code § 32000, et seq., the Board reserves and does not delegate 
herein its sole authority to bind or commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure.  
Specifically, either the Board or the Administrator, as the Board shall determine, shall have 
the following powers reserved to it, and the Committee shall have no jurisdiction over the 
following types of activities:  

(a) Approval of contracts,
(b) Approval of change orders,
(c) Expenditures of bond funds,
(d) Handling of all legal matters,
(e) Approval of project plans and schedules,
(f) Approval of all deferred maintenance plans, and
(g) Approval of the sale of bonds.

3.5 Measure C-24 Projects Only.  The Committee is charged with overseeing the expenditure 
of Bond Proceeds only. The Board does not charge the Committee with responsibility for any 
of the following: 

(a) The establishment of priorities and order of construction for the bond Projects, which
shall be made by the Board in its sole discretion.

(b) The selection of architects, engineers, soils engineers, owner’s advisors,
construction managers, project managers, CEQA consultants, and any other such
professional service firms as are required to complete the Projects based on District
criteria established by the Board in its sole discretion.

Page 248 of 261



(c) The approval of the design for each of the Projects, including exterior materials, paint
color, interior finishes, site plan, and construction methods (modular vs. permanent),
which shall be determined by the Board in its sole discretion.

(d) The selection of independent audit firm(s), performance audit consultants and such
other consultants as are necessary to support the activities of the Committee.

(e) The approval of an annual budget for the Committee that is sufficient to carry out the
activities described herein.

(f) The appointment or reappointment of qualified applicants to serve on the
Committee, subject to legal limitations and based on criteria adopted in the Board’s
sole discretion.

Section 4 - Authorized Activities. 

4.1 In order to perform the duties set forth in Section 3.0, the Committee shall engage in the 
following authorized activities: 

(a) Receive copies of the District’s annual independent performance audit and annual
independent financial audit.

(b) Inspect District facilities and grounds for which Bond Proceeds have been or will be
expended in accordance with any access procedure established by the District’s
Administrator, with prior notice to the District.

(c) Receive from the Board, within three months of the District receiving the audits
described in Section 4.1(a), responses to any and all findings, recommendations, and
concerns addressed in such audits, and review said responses.

Section 5 - Membership. 

5.1 Number. 

The Committee shall consist of five (5) members appointed by the Board from a list of 
candidates submitting applications. = 

5.2 Qualification Standards. 

(a) Members of the Committee must be at least 18 years of age and must continue to
meet the requirements under which they are appointed in Section 5.1 and this
Section 5.2 during the entirety of their term.

(b) The Committee may not include any employee, official of the District, or any vendor,
contractor, or consultant of the District.

5.3 Ethics: Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest. 

Page 249 of 261



(a) Members of the Committee are not subject to the Political Reform Act, Gov’t Code § 
81000 et seq.), and are not required to complete Form 700, but each member shall 
comply with the District’s Code of Ethics policy (Policy Number 1030) and Conflict of 
Interest policy (Policy Number 1035). 

These two policies provide general guidelines for members of the Committee in 
carrying out their responsibilities.  Not all ethical issues that Committee members 
may face are covered in these policies.  However, these policies capture some of the 
critical areas that help define ethical and professional conduct for Committee 
members.  

(b) CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  A Committee member shall not make or influence a District 
decision related to (1) any contract funded by bond proceeds, or (2) any construction 
project that will benefit the Committee member’s outside employment, business, or 
personal finance or benefit an immediate family member, such as a spouse, child or 
parent. 

(i) Members of the Committee shall not be financially interested in any contract 
made by them in their official capacity or by the Committee, nor shall they be 
purchasers at any sale or vendors at any purchase made by them in their official 
capacity, all as prohibited by subsection (b) of Section 5.2; and 

(ii) Members of the Committee shall not engage in any employment, activity, or 
enterprise for compensation which is inconsistent, incompatible, in conflict 
with, or inimical to duties as a member of the Committee or with the duties, 
functions, or responsibilities of the Committee or the District.  A member of the 
Committee shall not perform any work, service, or counsel for compensation 
where any part of his or her efforts will be subject to approval by any other 
officer, employee, board, or commission of the District’s Board of Directors. 

(c) OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT.   A Committee member shall not use his or her authority over 
a particular matter to negotiate future employment with any person or organization 
that relates to (1) any contract funded by bond proceeds or (2) any construction 
project.   A Committee member shall not make or influence a District decision related 
to any construction project involving the interest of a person with whom the member 
has an agreement concerning current or future employment or remuneration of any 
kind.   

(d) COMMITMENT TO UPHOLD LAW.  A Committee member shall uphold the federal and 
California Constitutions, the laws and regulations of the United States and the State 

Page 250 of 261



of California and all other applicable government entities, and the policies, 
procedures, rules, and regulations of the Cambria Community Healthcare District. 

(e) COMMITMENT TO DISTRICT.  A Committee member shall place the interests of the 
District above any personal or business interest of the member. 

5.4 Term.  Except as otherwise provided herein, each member shall serve a term of two (2) 
years.  No member may serve more than three (3) consecutive terms.  Members whose 
terms have expired may continue to serve on the Committee until a successor has been 
appointed.  Terms commence on the date the Member is appointed to the Committee by the 
Board of Directors. 

5.5 Appointment.  Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board through the 
following process: (a) the District will advertise the positions; (b) the Administrator will 
review the applications; and (c) the Administrator will make recommendations to the Board. 

5.6 Removal; Vacancy.  The Board may remove any Committee member for any reason, 
including failure to attend two consecutive Committee meetings without reasonable excuse, 
failure to comply with Section 5.3 - Ethics, or failure to meet the qualification standards in 
Section 5.2.  Upon a member’s removal, his or her seat shall be considered vacant.  The 
Board, in accordance with the established appointment process, shall fill any vacancies on 
the Committee.  The Board shall seek to fill vacancies within 90 days of the date of the 
vacancy. 

5.7 Compensation.  The Committee members shall not be compensated for their services. 

Section 6 - Meetings of the Committee. 

6.1 Regular Meetings.  The Committee shall meet at least once a year but shall not meet 
more frequently than quarterly. 

6.2 Location.  All meetings shall be held within the boundaries of the Cambria Community 
Healthcare District in Cambria, California. 

6.3 Procedures.  All meetings shall be open to the public and follow any procedural rules the 
Committee may adopt.  Three Members shall be required to constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of any business of the Committee. 

Section 7 - District Support. 

7.1 The District shall provide to the Committee necessary technical and administrative 
assistance as follows: 

(a) preparation of and posting of public notices; 
(b) provision of a meeting room, including any necessary audio/visual equipment; 

Page 251 of 261



(c) preparation, translation, and copies of any documentary meeting materials, such as 
agendas and reports; and 

(d) retention of all Committee records and providing public access to such records, 
including posting the annual report and any other documents at the Committee’s 
request on an Internet website maintained by the District. 

7.2 District staff and/or District consultants shall attend Committee proceedings as 
requested or as necessary in order to report on the status of projects and the expenditure of 
Bond Proceeds. 

Section 8 - Reports.  In addition to the Annual Report required in Section 3.3, the Committee 
may report to the Board from time to time in order to advise the Board on the activities of the 
Committee.  Such report shall be in writing and shall summarize the proceedings and 
activities conducted by the Committee. 

Section 9 - Officers.  The Board President shall appoint the initial Chair.  Thereafter, the 
Committee shall elect a Chair and a Vice-Chair who shall act as Chair only when the Chair 
is absent. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall serve in such capacities for a term of one year and 
may be re-elected by a vote of a majority of the members of the Committee. 

Section 10 - Amendment of Bylaws.  Any amendment to these Bylaws shall be approved by 
a majority vote of the District Board. 

Section 11 - Termination.  The Committee shall automatically terminate and disband 
concurrently with the Committee’s submission of the final Annual Report, which reflects the 
final accounting of the expenditure of all Measure C-24 Bond Proceeds. 

Page 252 of 261



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CAMBRIA, CALIFORNIA            JANUARY 28, 2025     

   RESOLUTION 50-25 

ESTABLISHING AN INDEPENDENT CITIZENS’ BOND 
   OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE FOR MEASURE C-24 

WHEREAS, The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the 
“Board”), previously adopted Resolution No. 44-24 requesting the Registrar of Voters of the San 
Luis Obispo County to call an election on November 5, 2024, on a measure to authorize a sale of 
bonds for the new ambulance station: and 

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2024, the Bond Election was duly held and conducted for the 
purpose of voting on a measure, designated as Measure C-24, to issue general obligation bonds 
(the “Bond”) of the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the “District”) in the amount of 
$5,900,000; and 

WHEREAS, more than two-thirds of the votes cast on Measure C-24 were in favor of 
issuing the Bond; and 

WHEREAS, In accordance with Sections 53410 and 53411 of the California Government 
Code, and Resolution 44-24 of the District Board of Directors, Bond Measure C-24 declares that 
the District Board of Directors shall implement appropriate accountability measures, including an 
independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interest of the 
District and its residents to form and appoint members to an independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight 
Committee who shall review expenditures and construction activity associated with the Measure 
C-24 General Obligation Bond, and provide an annual written report to the Board regarding use
of such bond funds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Healthcare District hereby authorizes the following:  

Section 1. An independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee (the “Committee”) is hereby 
established pursuant to Measure C-24 for the general purpose of providing oversight as to the 
expenditures of Measure C-24 general obligation bond revenues. 

ATTACHMENT 3

Page 253 of 261



Section 2. The independent Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee Bylaws (the “Bylaws”), a copy 
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, are hereby approved and adopted. 

 
Section 3. The Committee shall have the specific purposes and be operated in the manner 
required by the Bylaws, and such Bylaws may be amended from time to time by a majority vote 
of the District Board of Directors. The initial appointment of Committee members shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the Bylaws.  
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Cambria Community Healthcare District Board of 
Directors of San Luis Obispo County of State of California on January 28, 2025. 

 
                                                                                 ____________________________ 
                                                                                 Cecilia Montalvo, CCHD Board President 
 
ATTEST:        
 
________________________________ 
Igor Fedoroff, CCHD Board Secretary 

 

Page 254 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 05 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Tim Nurge, Operations Manager 

DATE:  January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION:  Key Performance Indicators (KPI) Biannual Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Monitor the intubation success rate for first-attempt procedures on an ongoing basis. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

DISCUSSION 

In the second half of 2024, the District experienced both improvements and deficiencies in various areas. 
The success rate for intravenous (IV) access increased from the first half of 2024 to the second half. This 
metric is our most reliable due to the large sample size. Other metrics, including 12-Lead EKG assessments, 
STEMI, trauma, stroke, and cardiac arrest triage remained consistent. 

The number of advanced airways placed between the first and second halves of 2024 significantly 
increased. Although the overall success rate for advanced airways was only 55%, it is important to note 
that 100% of calls requiring advanced airways resulted in a successfully established airway. The County is 
currently discussing ways to make data compilation easier and to monitor the first-pass success rate. 

The percentage of trauma patients with on-scene times under 20 minutes decreased from 74% in the first 
half of 2024 to 55% in the second half. This decline was largely attributed to extended extrication times 
and patient reluctance to be transported. To address this issue, the County is considering adding 
descriptors for extended on-scene times for trauma patients.  

Please refer to Attachment 1 for a detailed breakdown of KPI metrics and descriptions. 

ATTACHMENT(S)  

1. Cambria Community Healthcare District Key Performance Indicators 2024

BOARD ACTION  

None at this time. 

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 255 of 261



Cambria Community Healthcare District Key Performance Indicators Calendar Year 2024 ATTACHMENT 1

Jan-June 2024 July-Dec 2024
 Success Rate:               

January - December 2024 Status

Certain situations may require extrication or patient 
reluctant to transport which may extend on scene time

Specialty Care: 
Cardiac Arrest- 
Return of 
Spontaneous 
Circulation

Specialty Care System metrics for Cardiac 
Arrests. This metric measures number of 
patients who received ALS Cardiac Arrest Care 
and achieved Return of Spontaneous Circulation 
and were transported to the correct hospital.

1-ROSC, 3-Working Cardiac
Arrests

1-ROSC, 4-Working Cardiac
Arrests Out of Hospital

33%/25%

Accurate treatment includes quick recognition/CPR 
initiation, appropriate medications/procedures rendered, 
proper appropriate transport destinations. National 
Average: ~30%

Specialty Care 
Trauma: On Scene 
Time 

The recommended on scene time for trauma 
patients is 10-20 minutes to transport.

<20 Minutes- 22/20+ Minutes- 
8/ Total-30

<20 Minutes- 16/20+ Minutes- 
15/ Total-29

74%/55%

Specialty Care: 
Cardiac Arrest

Specialty Care System metrics for Cardiac 
Arrests. This metric measures number of 
patients who suffered Cardiac Arrest and 
accurate treatment/decisions were made.

4/4 8/8 100% / 100%

Accurate treatment includes quick recognition/CPR 
initiation, advanced airway, appropriate 
medications/procedures rendered, proper recognition of 
obvious death, and appropriate transport and termination 
decisions.

Specialty Care: 
Stroke

Specialty Care System metrics for Stroke Alerts. 
This metric measures number of patients and 
accurate recognition/treatment given.

25/25 11/11 100% / 100%
Accurate treatment includes proper recognition of stroke 
criteria, obtaining blood glucose and 12 lead, and 
expedited on transport with last known normal < 6 hours.

Specialty Care: 
Trauma

Specialty Care System metrics for Trauma 
Alerts/Consultations. This metric measures 
number of patients and accurate 
categorization/treatment given.

30 Trauma Consult or Alert/ 
30 Appropriate 

Destination/Treatment

29 Trauma Consult or Alert/ 
29  Appropriate 

Destination/Treatment
100% / 100%

Accurate treatment includes proper trauma categorization, 
appropriate treatments. .

Specialty Care: 
STEMI

Specialty Care System metrics for STEMIs (heart 
attacks). This metric measures number of 
patients and 12 Lead EKG accurate 
recognition/treatment given.

2-STEMI EKG/2- STEMI ALERT
and Correct Triage

8- STEMI EKG/8 STEMI ALERT
or EKG CONSULTATION

100% / 100%
Accurate treatment includes early and serial 12 Lead ECGs, 
appropriate medication administration, and appropriate 
Call In to the hospital (STEMI ALERT)

12 Lead EKG 
Assessment with 
chest pain

Diagnostic procedure completed in the field to 
assess for possible heart attack. Shall be done on 
all suspected cardiac chest pain patients per 
SLOEMSA Procedure #707.

36- 12 Lead Performed/ 38 
Total

25- 12 Lead Performed/ 27 
Total

CP-Suspected Cardiac 100% CP-
Not Cardiac- 92.1% / 92.5%

Metric Count is based on successful 12 lead performed on 
Chest Pain patients with a provider impression of "Chest 
Pain- Suspected Cardiac, or Chest Pain- Not Cardiac). Chest 
Pain-Not Cardiac may have justification for not performing 
12 Lead EKG based on age, social circumstances, or trauma

Advanced Airway 
Placement

Placement of Endotracheal tubes and 
Supraglottic Airways

0-Unsuccessful/2 Successful/2
Total

6-Successful/5-
Unsuccessful/11 Total

100% / 54% (100% Advanced 
Airway Established)

Use of Advanced airways (ETI and SGA) is currently low due 
to patient volume and use of BLS airways instead. A 
bulletin from SLOEMSA was recently received encouraging 
more use of Advanced Airways. This metric is projected to 
be higher next year.

Metric Objective Notes

Placement of IVs IV Placed successfully on each attempt
66-Unsuccesssful/207- 
Successful/273 Total

55- Unsuccessful/242- 
Successful/297 Total

76% / 81% IV Success rate compared to 82.7% County success rate.

Page 256 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 06 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Linda Hendy, Administrator/Finance 

DATE: January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION: Renewal of California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Membership 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommendation to continue membership with the California Special Districts Association (CSDA). 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The negotiated membership fee is $7,747, which includes a one-time discount saving the District $890 in 2025. 

DISCUSSION 

After conducting further research, Administrator Hendy confirmed that the District must maintain an active 
membership with the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) in order to participate in the Special District 
Insurance Program offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). A Joint Powers 
Agreement has been established between SDRMA and CSDA. 

BACKGROUND 

The CSDA was established to assist and promote special districts. It has also played a key role in creating the 
SDRMA to serve the best interests of special districts and other public agencies throughout the state.  

SDRMA provides risk management programs and insurance coverage for local governments. Currently, SDRMA 
serves as the District's insurance carrier for both workers' compensation and general liability insurance. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None at this time. 

BOARD ACTION 

Motion to approve 2025 California Special Districts Association (CSDA) membership. 

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 257 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD AGENDA STAFF REPORT – 07 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Linda Hendy, Administrator/Finance 

DATE: January 28, 2025 

DESCRIPTION: Establish a Debt Management Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommendation to establish Policy 2170 - Debt Management. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

DISCUSSION 

A debt management policy provides a structured framework for managing debt, ensuring responsible 
borrowing practices, promoting long-term financial stability, and minimizing risks. It allows the District's 
Board of Directors to make informed decisions about when and how to take on debt, ultimately protecting 
the District's creditworthiness and financial health.  

Proposed Policy 2170 - Debt Management clearly outlines goals and limits for debt levels, ensuring fiscal 
responsibility.  

ATTACHMENT(S) 

1. Policy 2170 - Debt Management

BOARD ACTION 

Motion to approve Policy 2170 - Debt Management. 

UNANIMOUS: __ 

MONTALVO___MILEUR___FEDOROFF___MUMPER___KULESA___ 

Page 258 of 261



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 2170 

 ____________________________________________________________________________ 

This Debt Management Policy shall govern the issuance and administration of debt 
issued by the Cambria Community Healthcare District (the “District”). To provide for the 
appropriate issuance and responsible use of debt, the District has adopted this Debt Policy. 

1. Findings

This Debt Policy is intended to comply with Government Code Section 8855(i), and shall 
govern all debt undertaken by the District.  The District hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent 
debt policy is required in order to: (1) Maintain the District’s sound financial position; (2) Ensure 
the District has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities, revenue levels, 
and operating expenses; (3) Protect the District’s credit-worthiness; (4) Ensure that all 
debt is structured in order to protect both current and future taxpayers, ratepayers and 
constituents of the District; and (5) Ensure that the District’s debt is consistent with the District’s 
planning goals and objectives and capital improvement program or budget, as applicable. 

2. Policies

A. Purposes For Which Debt May Be Issued

Long-Term Debt.  Long-term debt may be issued to finance the construction, acquisition,
and rehabilitation of capital improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be owned and 
operated by the District, as well as management of other long-term obligation such as pension 
and OPEB obligations. Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following conditions 
exist: (1) When the project to be financed is necessary to provide basic services; (2) When the 
project to be financed will provide benefit to constituents over multiple years; (3) When total debt 
does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the District and its taxpayers and/or ratepayers, 
as applicable; (4) When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt 
service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring. 

Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered appropriate for current 
operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses.  The District may use long-term debt 
financings subject to the following conditions: (1) The project to be financed must be approved by 
the Board of Directors; (2) The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt 
allocated to the project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed by 
more than 20%; (3) The District estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to service the 
debt through its maturity; and (4) The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply 
with all applicable state and federal law. 

Short-term debt.  Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing for the District’s 
operational cash flows in order to maintain a steady and even cash flow balance.  Short-term debt 
may also be used to finance short-lived capital projects; for example, the District may undertake 
lease-purchase financing for equipment. 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 259 of 261



 2 

B. Types of Debt 
 

The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Policy: general obligation bonds 
(GO Bonds); loan agreements and revenue bonds; lease revenue bonds, certificates of 
participation (COPs) and lease-purchase transactions; pension obligation bonds; grant 
anticipation notes; tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs); Land-secured financings, such 
as special tax revenue bonds issued under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as 
amended; and limited obligation bonds issued under applicable assessment statutes; state 
revolving loan funds; and lines of credit or interim borrowings. 

 
The Board of Directors may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be 

beneficial to further its public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this 
Debt Policy.  Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the District makes a specific 
determination as to why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the District in a specific 
circumstance. 

 
C. Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget 

 
The District is committed to long-term capital planning. The District intends to issue debt 

for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the 
District’s capital budget and the capital improvement plan. The District shall strive to fund the 
upkeep and maintenance of its infrastructure and facilities due to normal wear and tear through 
the expenditure of available operating revenues.  The District shall seek to avoid the use of debt 
to fund infrastructure and facilities improvements that are the result of normal wear and tear.  As 
applicable, the District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improvement 
program by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in 
furtherance of the District’s public purposes. The District shall seek to issue debt in a timely 
manner to avoid having to make unplanned expenditures for capital improvements or equipment 
from its general fund. 

 
D. Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives 

 
The District is committed to long-term financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserves 

levels and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget administration. 
The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement 
policy decisions incorporated in the District’s annual operations budget.  It is a policy goal of the 
District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers (if applicable) and constituents by utilizing conservative 
financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical credit ratings (if applicable) 
and the lowest practical borrowing costs. The District will comply with applicable state and federal 
law as it pertains to the maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any 
related taxes, assessments, rates and charges.  When refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal 
of the District to realize, whenever possible, and subject to any overriding non-financial policy 
considerations, minimum net present value debt service savings equal to or greater than 3.0% of 
the refunded principal amount. 

 
The District shall strive for good communications with bond rating agencies, bond counsel, 

banks, financial advisors, and other involved in debt issuance and management.  Comprehensive 
annual financial reports and official statements will reflect the District’s commitment to full and 
open disclosure concerning debt 

 

Page 260 of 261



 3 

E. Internal Control Procedures 
 

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the District 
shall comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing 
disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, the District will periodically review the requirements of and will endeavor to remain in 
compliance with the following: (1) Any continuing disclosure undertakings entered into by the 
District in accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12: (2) Any federal tax compliance requirements, 
including, without limitation, arbitrage and rebate compliance; and (3) The District’s investment 
policies as they relate to the use and investment of bond proceeds.  

 
Proceeds of debt will be held either (1) by a third-party trustee or fiscal agent, which will 

disburse such proceeds to or upon the order of the District upon the submission of one or more 
written requisitions by the Director of Administrative Services (or his or her written designee), or 
(2) by the District, to be held and accounted for in a separate fund or account, the expenditure of 
which will be carefully documented by the District. 
 

Page 261 of 261


	1. CCHD Board Agenda Packet 1-28-25
	AGENDA
	A. OPENING
	B. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
	C. CONSENT AGENDA
	D. REPORTS
	E. REGULAR BUSINESS
	F. DECLARATION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS


	2. BOD Meeting Minutes 12.17.24
	A. OPENING
	1. The meeting was called to order at 9:02 am.
	B. OATH OF OFFICE
	1. Oath of Office: Secretary Fedoroff swore in President Montalvo and Director Mumper. President Montalvo swore in Director Fedoroff.
	C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Director Mileur motioned to approve the following 2025 Officer nominations, Director Fedoroff seconded the motion, and the Board approved the motion by roll call, 5/0.
	 President – Cecilia Montalvo
	 Vice President – Bruce Mumper
	 Secretary – Iggy Fedoroff
	D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
	1. No members of the public provided comment.
	E. CONSENT AGENDA
	G.  REGULAR BUSINESS
	F. REPORTS
	G. REGULAR BUSINESS
	H. DECLARATION OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
	1. C-24 Citizens Oversight Committee
	2. Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
	3. General Counsel Legal Services Contract
	4. Fee Schedule
	5. Mid-Year Financial Review
	6. Key Performance Indicators Update
	7. Retiree Health Premiums (Closed Session)

	3.Ops Report December 2024
	4.Financial Staff Report - Jan25
	Dec2024 Financial Report.pdf
	DECEMBER YTD 2024-2025 (2)

	BANK FINANCIALS_.pdf
	December 2024


	5. Authorization for bond 
	51-25 Final Bond Resolution - Cambria Community HCD.pdf
	APPENDIX A


	6a.Audited Financial Statement June 30, 2024
	Cambria Community Healthcare District 2024. Final Audit .pdf
	audit cover.pdf
	Cambria Community Healthcare District
	FINANCIAL      STATEMENTS
	June 30, 2024




	7a. Ambulance Reso
	8.  Establish Independent Citizens Bond Oversight Committee
	9. Agenda Item-  KPI Biannual Report
	Cambria KPI 2nd Half 2024.pdf
	1st Half 2024


	10. CSDA Membership
	11. Establish a Debt Management Policy



